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We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of GR Phagwara 
Expressway Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 
2021, the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the info rmation required by the 
Act in the manner so requi red and give a true and fair view in confo rmity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the s tate of affairs of the Company as 
at March 31, 2021, its profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by 
ICAI and specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 201 3 
and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. 



GR PHAGWARA EXPRESS WAY LIMITED 

Independent Auditors' Report on standalone financial statements (Continued) 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report: 

Key audit matters J How our audit addressed the ke_yaudit matter 

Recognition of contract revenue and construction cost: 

The Company's business involves 
entering into contractual 
relationships with customers to 
provide a range of services with 

a significant proportion of 
the Company's revenues and 
profits derived from long term 
contracts. Revenue on individual 
contracts is recognized in 
accordance with Ind AS 115, 
Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers, based on the extent of 
progress towards completion. 

Due to the contracting nature of 
the business, revenue recognition 
involves a significant degree of 
judgment and estimates including: 
• estimate the total contract 

costs; 
• estimate the stage of 

completion of the contract; 
• estimate the total revenue 

and total costs to complete 
contracts; 

• estimate impact of 
variables such as scope 
modifications; and 

• appropriately provide for 
loss making contracts. 

Our audit procedures in this area included, among 
others: 
• evaluating the design, implementation and 

operating effectiveness of relevant internal 
controls over the contract revenue 
recognition and cost estimation process; 

• inspection of contract agreements with 
customer and subcontractor, to identify key 
terms and conditions, including the contract 
period, contract sum, the scope of work, the 
methodology for calculating liquidated and 
ascertained damages, and evaluating 
whether these key terms and conditions had 
been appropriately reflected in the total 
revenue and costs to complete in the 
forecast of the outcome of the contract; 

• comparing the percent of contract revenue 
recognized for all contracts during the year 
with certification from an independent 
engineer of the ultimate customer; 

• inquiring the management and project 
directors the status of contract in progress 
as at year end, including milestones if any 
overdue, and reviewed the key estimates 
and assumptions adopted in the forecast of 
contract revenue and contract costs, 
including estimated costs to completion, 
recognition of variation in scope of work, 
adequacy of contingency provisions, and 
assessing information in connection the 
assumptions adopted. 
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Related party transactions 

The Company has significant 
transactions with related parties 
during the year. The related party 
balances as at 31 March 2021 and 
related party transactions during 
the year are disclosed in the 
Standalone Financial Statements. 
Given the volume of related party 
transactions, we have considered 
this to be a key audit matter. 

Our audit procedures in this area included, 
among others: 
• evaluation of the appropriateness of the 

management's process for identifying, 
recording and disclosing related parties and 
related party transactions; 

• understanding the nature of related 
transactions through discussions 
management and verification 
underlying agreements; 

party 
with 

of 

• verifying if transactions with related parties 
had actually occurred through audit 
procedures including confirmation, visiting 
a sample of project sites selected on a 
random basis, review of monthly progress 
reports submitted by Independent engineer 
of ultimate customer; 

• obtaining and inspecting the report of 
Independent engineers to assess 
reasonableness of the amounts being charged 
by the lender. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report 
Thereon 

The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not 
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
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Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (lnd AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these Standalone Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

• Ol:Jtain a_n und_ersta_!}d_in_g of intern?l <_:on~rQl releva!}t tQ the audit in Qrder tQ cle~ign 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls . 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone 
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone 
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements 
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of 
any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that .may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in Annexure - I a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
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As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply, in material 
respect, with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) ofthe Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in Annexure II. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a 
material impact its financial position; 

ii) Based on the assessment made by the company, there are no material 
foreseeable losses on its long term contracts that may require any 
provisioning 

iii) In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit, the 
reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

iv) The disclosure in the Financial Statements regarding holdings as well as 
dealings in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 
to 30 December 2016 have not been made in the financial statements since 
they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2 021. 

For JLN US & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

fR~\~w 

CA ~: Menaria 
Partner 
M No. 400828 
UDIN:21400828AAAAFA3196 

Udaipur, May 26, 2021 
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Annexure - I to the Independent Auditors Report 

Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of GR Phagwara Expressway 
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2021 

i) (a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no 
fixed assets in existence with company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no 
immovable properties included in the fixed assets of the company and 
accordingly the reporting requirements under sub clause (c) of clause (i) of 
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

ii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has sub-contracted the entire construction I operation related activities 
and therefore does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements 
under clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting 
requirements under sub-clause (a), (b) and (c) of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the 
order are not applicable. 

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the reporting 
requirements under clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. 
Consequently, the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable. 

vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly 
reviewed such records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed 
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or 
complete. 

vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 
records of the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in 
depositing the undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, goods and 
service tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues, as 
applicable, with the appropriate authorities in India. 
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According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues 
outstanding of disputed demand of income-tax, are provided in para (b):. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, following are 
applicable statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute. 

Notice ujs & Raised by Demand 
& Assessment Year (Rs.) Status 

142(1) by A.O. forAY 2,90,354 Assessment completed & Order is passed 
2018-19 interest under Section 244A. Rectification 

filed against the order which is pending. 

143(1) by CPC forAY 10,56,520 Rectification filed to CPC. The Assessee 
2019-20 has requested rectification rights transfer 

to Jurisdictional AO. 

viii) Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of information 
and explanations provided by the management we are of the opinion that the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks I Financial Institutions. 
The company does not have any borrowings from government or Debenture 
Holders. 

· ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
term loans taken by the company have been ultimately utilised for the purpose for 
which they were taken. 

x) Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the 
true and fair view of the Standalone Financial Statements and as per the 
information and explanations given to us by the management, we report that we 
have neither come across any instance of fraud by the company or on the company 
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of any such case by the management. 

xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
paid any managerial remuneration during the year and hence the reporting 
requirements under clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under 
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

xiii) The Company being an unlisted company and wholly owned subsidiary of a public 
company, provisions of Section 177 are not applicable to the Company. However, all 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance sections 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in so far as our examinations of the proceedings of the 
meetings of the Board of Directors are concerned. The details of related party 
transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required by 
the applicable Indian Accounting Standard. 
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xiv) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under audit. 

xv) As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
them. 

xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company is not required to be registered under Section 45 - lA of the Reserve Bank 
of India, 1934. 

For JLN US & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN~: 

CA Mahesh Menaria 
Partner 
M No. 400828 
UDIN:21400828AAAAFA3196 

Udaipur, May 26, 2021 
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Annexure - II to the Independent Auditors Report 

Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of GR Phagwara Expressway 
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2021 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GR Phagwara 
Expressway Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audi t 
of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company fo r the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is r esponsible fo r establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company consider ing the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguar ding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company' s internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 

For JLN US & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

F~;3W 

CA Mahesh Menaria 
Partner 
M No. 400828 
UDIN:21400828AAAAFA3196 

Udaipur, May 26, 2021 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 
Balance Sheet 
as at 3 / st March 202 1 

(C urrency: Indian Rupees in lakhs) 

Particulars 

--

Assets 
Non-current assets 
(a) Financial assets 

(i) Other llnancial assets 
(b) Other non-current assets 
(c) Current tax assets (net) 

Current assets 
(a) Financial assets 

(i) Trade receivab le 
(ii) Cash and cash eq ui va lents 
(iii) Other bank balances 
(i v) Other llnancial assets 

(b) Other current assets 

Total assets 

Equity and liabilities 
Equity 
(a) Eq uity share capital 
(b) Other equity 

Liabilities 
No n-current liab ilities 
(a) Financial Liabi lities 

( i) Borrowings 
(b) Deferred tax liabilities 

Current liabilities 
(a) Financiall iabilities 

(i) Trade payables- total outstanding dues of 
(a) micro enterpri ses and sma ll en terpri ses 
(b) creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(ii) Other llnancialliabilities 
(b) Other current liabili ti es 

Total equity and liabilities 

The notes referred above are an integral part of these linancial statements. 

J\ s per our report of even date attached 

For .IL N US AND COMPANY 
Chartered Accountcmts 

F1~~~ 101543W 

w· 
CA Mahesh Menaria 
Partner 

M . No. 400828 

l'h1 C~ Uda ip ur 
nat~ 26th Ma,· 2021 

Note 31 March2021 3 I March 2020 

4 
5 

6 

7 

8 
9 

4 
5 

10 
II 

12 
22 

13 

14 

15 

51,500.01 

5,334.81 
1,110.73 

57,945.55 

22. 15 

145.52 
12,157.30 
4,159.2 1 

1,157.28 
17,641.46 

75,587.01 

2,030.00 
5,606.83 

7,636.83 

59,041 .45 

2,206.26 
61,247.7 1 

3,425.10 
3,175.50 

101.87 
6,702.47 

67,950.18 

75,587.01 

49, 150.93 

153 .29 
49,304.22 

2 1.35 
97 .54 

3,903 .26 

5,872.59 
9,894.74 

59, 198.96 

2.030.00 
4, 188.32 

6,218.32 

51,410.70 

454.60 
51 ,865 .30 

91.99 

87 .81 

935.54 
I , 115.34 

52,980.64 

59,198.96 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Gn l'hagwara Ex pressway Limited 

(C IN U45400R.I 20 16PLC056040) 

lj.:Jo.i~M~ v.....-~ 
Vi l<as Agann0 - -- - Varun Bhasin 

Director & CEO 

DI N 03113689 

Place: Gurugram 

J~~ 
llecna Ta lcsara 
Company Secret m y 

ICSI Mcmb No. ACS42655 

P!acc: Uda ipur 
Date 26th !VIay 202 1 

Director 

DIN : 03262761 

Place: Gl~l:ram 

!P 
l<ulde<'p .Jain 

Chie(Fillallcial ()_[Jicer 

ICJ\1 !VI emb. No. -W4756 

!' lace: Uda ipur 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 

Statement of Profit and Loss 

for the year ended 3 I March 202 I 

(C urrency: Indi an Rupees in Jak hs) 

Particulars 

Income 

Revenue lro m operations 

Other income 
Tota l inco me 

Expenses 

Civil const ruction costs 

Employee benefits expense 

Finance costs 
Ot her ex penses 

Tota l expe nses 

Profit before tax 

Tax ex pense: 

Current tax 

C urrent tax re lated to prior years 

Deferred tax charge 

Profit for the yea r 

Other comprehensive income 

Other comprehensive incom e for the year, net of tax 

Total co mprehensive incom e for the year 

Ea rnings per share 
(Nominal value or share Rs. l 0 each ) 

Basic (Rs) 

Dil uted (Rs I 

The notes referred above arc an integral part of these fi nancial statements. 

1\s per our report or even date attached 

For .J LN US AND COM PA NY 

( ·twrlerecl Accountants 

Firm's Regn No. I 0 1543W 

~/-
CA Ml1hcs h Mcnaria 
fJartner 

M. No. 400828 

Place : Udaipur 

Date : 26 May 2021 

Note 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1 

22 

22 

22 

2':) 

3 1 March 202 1 

17,74 1.81 

222. 13 

17,963.94 

9,476.37 

5.63 
5,047.60 

573.92 

15, 103.52 

2,860.42 

(309.75) 
1,75 1.66 

1,44 1.9 10 

1,4 18.51 

1,4 18.51 

6.99 

6.99 

3 1 March 2020 

40,976.55 

136.76 

4 1, 11 3.3 1 

34,7 14.90 

5.40 

4,338. 75 

28 1.44 

39,340.49 

I ,772.82 

309.75 

5.15 

476.88 

791.78 

98 1.04 

981.04 

4.83 

4.83 

For a nd on behalf of the Board of Directo rs 

G R Phagwara Expressway Limited 

(CIN: U45400R.120 16PLC056040) 

U,__;_,~~~ 
Vikas Aga rwal 
/Jirector & CI:'O 
DIN: 03\13689 

Place: Gurugram 

Varun Bhasin 

/)JreclfJr 

~c~ 
(·om puny .\"ecrelm)l 

ICSI Memb. No. ACS42655 

Place: Udaipur 

Date : 26 May 202 1 

DIN : 03262761 

Place: Gurugram 

o1!'~ '"'" Chief Financi al Officer 

!CAl Memb. No. 404756 

Place: Udaipur 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 

Statement of Cash Flows 

for the y ear e11ded 31 March 202 1 

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lak hs) 

Pa r1iculars 

Cash flows from operating activi1ies 

Pro lit bdore tax 

Adjustments lor: 

Inte rest income 

-on mobilisation advances to Parent Company 

-on deposits with banks 

Fi nance costs 

Working cap ita l adjustments 

(lncrease)/decrease in fin ancia l and non- financial assets 

Decrease I ( Increase) in trade receivab les 

Inc rease I (decrease) in trade payablcs 

Increase /(decrease ) in provis ions, linancial and non-financial li abi liti es 

Cash (used in) operating activities 

Income tax paid (net) 

Ne t cash (used in) operating al"livities (A) 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Interest received 

Ne t cash generated from investing activities (B) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

In terest paid 

Proceeds/( repayment) o !" borrowings (net) 

Nd cash generated from financin g activities (C) 

Nl'l increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Balance o f cash and cash equivalents as at begin ning o!" the year 

Balance of cash and cash equival ents as at31 Marc h 202 1 

No tt·s: 

3 1 Marc h 202 1 3 1 March 2020 

2,860.42 I ,772.82 

(222.13) 

5,047.60 

7,685.89 

(IS,38UI3) 

(0.80) 

3,333.11 

(833.35) 

(5,196.98) 

(647.70) 

(5,844.68) 

222.13 

222.13 

(4,015.57) 

9,686.10 

5,670.53 

47.98 

97.54 

145.52 

(127.47) 

(9 29) 

4,3 38. 75 

5,974 .8 1 

( 13,012 08) 

35 1.65 

(3 ,637 82) 

(3 ,353 73) 

( 13,677. 17) 

(5 1476) 

( 14, 19 1.93) 

136.76 

136.76 

(3 ,667 24) 

17,736. 19 

14,068.95 

13 .78 

83 .76 

97.54 

I. The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared und er the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard 

(lnd AS)- 7 "Statement o!"Cash Flows". 

2. Cash and cash eq ui valents comprises o !" 

Balances with banks: 

- Current accounts 

Cash on hand 

Cash and cash equiva lents (refer note 8) 

Cas h :uul cash equivalents in s ta tement of cash flow 

As at 

31 Mard1 2021 

144.42 

1.10 

145.52 

145.52 

As at 

3 I March 2020 

96.44 

1.10 

97.54 

97.54 

3. The Company has undrawn borrowing !"acilities (excluding non -!"und based li1c ilities) aggregating toRs. NIL (PY Rs.8,800.00 Lakhs) towards 

!"uture projects to be executed by the Company. 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 

Sta tement of Cash Flows (continued) 

for the year ended 31 March 2021 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs) 

4. Reconciliation of movements of cash flows arising from financing activities 

Li:1bilities 

Balance as at 1st April2019 
C ash Flow from financing activities 
Proceeds fl·om borrowing 
Repayment of borrowings 
Other borrowing costs paid * 
Interest paid 
To tal cash flow from financing activities 
Liabi lity related other changes 
Other borrowing costs* 
Interest ex pense 
Balance as at 31 March 2020 
Balance as at 1st A pril 2020 

Cas h Flow from financing activities 

Proceeds from borrowing 

Repayment of borrowings 
Other borrowing costs paid * 

Interest paid 

Total cash flow from financing activities 

Liability related other changes 

Other borrowing costs* 

Interest expense 

Balance as at 31 Manh 2021 
• inc ludes other borrowing costs for non-funded credit lim its. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For .JLN US AND COMPANY 
Chartered Accountants 

~·l01543W 

CA Mahesh Menaria 

Partner 

M. No. 400828 

Place Udaipur 

Date : 26 May 202 1 

Custo mer Non-current Share Capita l Total 
advances borrowings 

4, 118.74 33,090.37 2,030.00 39,239. II 

20 ,013 .51 20 ,013 .5 1 
(2 ,277.32) (2,277.32) 

(0.02) (0 02) 
(3 ,667 22 ) (3 ,667 22) 
14 068.95 14 068.95 

(3 ,463 57) (3 ,463 57 ) 
0.02 0.02 

93.51 4,338.73 4,432.24 
748.68 51 498.06 2 030.00 54 276.74 
748.68 51,498.06 2,030.00 54,276.74 

9,696.60 9,696.60 
(10 50) (lO.SO) 
(27. 54 ) (27.54) 

(3 ,988 03) (3,988.03) 

5,670.53 5,670.53 
(84219) (842.19) 

27.54 27.54 
93.5 1 5,020 .05 5,113.56 

62,216.18 2,030.00 64,246.18 

Fo r and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

GR Phagwara Ex pressway Limited 

(C IN U45400R.I20 16PLC056040) 

u~~.,~~ 
Director & CEO 

DIN : 03113689 

Place: Gurugram 

.kd::~ 
Co111pany Secret my 

!CSI Memb. No. ACS42655 

Place: Udaipur 

Date : 26 May 202 I 

Varun Hhasin 

Director 

DIN : 03262761 

Place: Gurugram 

~d~epJain 
Chief Financial Officer 

!CA l Memb. No. 404756 

Place Udai pur 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 

Statement of Changes in Eq uity 

for the year ended 31 March 202 1 

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lak hs) 

A. Equity Share Ca pital 

Particulars 

Balance as at 01 April 2019 

Changes in equity share capita l during the year 

Balance as at 31 Marc h 2020 

Changes in eq uity share cap ital during the yea r 

Balance as at 31 Marc h 202 1 

B. Other Equity 

Particulars 

Balance as at 01 April 2019 

Profit for the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 

Profit for the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 

As per our report as on date attached 

For .JLN US AND COMPANY 

Chartered Accountants 

CA Mahesh Menari a 

Partner 

M. No. 400828 

Place : Udaipur 

Date 26th May 202 1 

No te 
Number of 

Amount 
shares 

10 2,03 ,00,000 2,030 00 

- -
2,03,00,000 2,030.00 

10 - -

2,03,00,000 2,030.00 

Retained 
Total 

Earnings 
3,207.28 3,207.28 

981.04 98104 

4, 188.32 4,188.32 

1,418 .5 1 1,4 18.5 1 

5,606.83 5,606.83 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 

(C IN U45400R.I20 16PLC056040) 

~~~"~ 
Director & CEO 

DIN 03 11 3689 

Place: Gurugram 

~~~ 
Company Secretwy 
ICS I Memb. No. ACS42655 

Place: Udaipur 

Date : 26th May 2021 

Va run Bhasin 

Director 

DIN : 0326276 1 

Place: Gurugram 

t9~9· 
Kuldeep Jain 

Chief Financial Officer 

ICA I Memb. No. 404756 

Place: Udaipur 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 
Notes to th e financial s ta tements (co lllilllled) 

fur the year ended 3 I March 202 I 

(C urrency: Indi an Rupees in lak hs) 

4 Other financial assets 

Pa rticulars 

No n-current 

Financial assets receivable 

Fixed deposi ts wit h banks hav ing mat uri ty mo re than I 2 months from the report in g 

da te 

C urrent 

Financial assets receivab le 

Total 

O th e r C urrent assets 

Parti culars 

Non -current 

GST in Jut rece ivable 

C urrent 

Security deposits 

Advance to suppliers for goods and services 

Prepa id expenses 

Balance with governm ent authorities 
GST in put receivable 

GST T DS receivab le 

Total 

6 C urrent tax Assets (n et) 

Particulars 
Non-current 

A dvance tax net of provision 

Total 

T r ad e n ece ivables 

Pa rticulars 

Current 
considered good - secured 

considered good - unsecured 
which have significant increase in cred it ri sk 

cred it im aired 

Total 

3 1 M arch 202 1 

51,500.01 

5 1,500.01 

4, 159.2 1 

4, 159.2 1 

55,659.22 

3 1 M arch 21l21 

5,334.8 1 

5,334.8 1 

5.88 

0.49 

52.43 

1,098.48 

1, 157.28 

3 I March 202 I 

1, 110.73 

1, 110.73 

3 1 M arch 202 1 

22 . 15 

22 .1 5 

3 I Ma rch 2020 

49.149 70 

1.23 

49, I 50.93 

3,903.26 

3,903.26 

53,054. 19 

3 I March 2020 

5.62 

1. 72 

4,852.53 

1,012.72 

5,872.59 

3 I March 2020 

153.29 

I 53.29 

3 I March 2020 

21.35 

2 I .35 

Retent ion money relating to construction contracts are included in above trade rece ivables as they are recoverable wi thin the operating cycle of the 
Company. 

Retention money 

Total 

8 Cas h a nd clls h cq ui val ents 

Parti culars 

Ba lance with banks 

in cu rrent accoun ts 

Cash in ha nd 

Total 

9 O th e r ba nk ba lances 

Pa rticu lars 

C urrent 

Deposi ts with original maturity of Jess than three months 
Deposits with original metlurit~r on'r :1 months but less than 12 months 

Total 

3 1 Ma rch 202 1 

12.65 

12.65 

31 March 2021 

144.42 

1.10 

145.52 

31 ~ l a rc h 202 1 

9,305.22 

2,852.08 

3 1 Ma rch 2020 

3 I March 2020 

96.44 

1.10 

97 .54 

3 i iviarch 2020 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 
Notes to the fin ancia l sta tements (continued) 

for t he year ended 31 March 2021 

(C urrency: Ind ian Rupees in lakhs) 

10 Equit y Share ca pit a l 

Aut horised 

20,300.000 eq uity shares o f Rs. I 0 each 

Issued , subscribed aud pa id up 

20,300,000 equity shares of Rs. I 0 each 

/\ II iss ued shares are fully pa id up. 

Reconciliation of eq uity s hare outs tanding at the beginning a nd a t th e end of t he year. 

Pa rt iculars 3 1 March 2021 

Numbers A mount 

At the commencement of the year 2,03,00,000 2,030.00 

Add : Issued during the year 

At the end of the year 2,03,00,000 2,030.00 

Pa rticulars of shareholders holding mo re than 5% equit y sha res in th e Compa ny 

Pa rticula rs 

Equ ity share or Rs. I 0 each fu lly paid-up held by 

G R ln fraproj ects Li mited (Parent Company) 

Terms & Rights attached to equit y sha res: 

3 1 March 202 1 

Numbers 'Y., of to ta l 

2,03,00,000 100. 00 

3 1 i\'hnch 202 1 3 1 March 2020 

2,030.00 2,030.00 

2,030.00 2,030.00 

2,030.00 2,030.00 

2,030.00 2,030.00 

3 I March 2020 

Numbers Amou nt 

2,03 ,00,000 2,030.00 

2,03,00,000 2,030.00 

3 I March 2020 

Numbers %of total share 

in class 

2.03,00 ,000 100.00 

The Company has a si ngle class of equ ity shares. Accord ingly. all equity shares rank equa lly with rega rd to d ividends and sha re in the Company' s 
res id ual assets. The eq uity shares a rc ent itl ed to receive di vidend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an eq uity shareholder on a poll 
(not on show of ha nds) a re in proportion to its share of the paid-up equi ty capita l of the Com pany. Vot ing rights cannot be exerc ised in respect or 

sha res on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. 

f a ilure to pay any amount ca ll ed up on shares may lead to forfe iture of the shares. 

On winding up of the Com pany, the holders of equity shares wi ll be entit led to rece ive th e res idual assets of the company. remai nin g a ller 
distr ibution of all prefe renti al amoun ts in proportion to the num ber of equity shares held. 

II Oth er equity 

Parti cula rs Rclltincd 
Total 

carnin us 
Opening Balance as at commencement of year 3,207.28 3,207.28 

Profit for the year 98 1.04 98 1.04 

Bala nce as a t 3 1 Ma rch 2020 4, 188.32 4, 188.32 
Pro lit for th e year 1,4 18.5 1 1,4 18.5 1 
Ba la nce as a t 31 Ma rch 202 1 5,606.83 5,606.83 



GR P hagwara Expressway Limited 

Notes to the financial statements (co11tillued) 

for /he y ear e11ded 31 March 202 1 

(C urrency: Indian Rupees in lakhs) 

12 Borrowings 

Pllrticulars 

Secured Lollns- From Banl<s 

HD FC Bank Lim ited 

Ax is Bank 

Bank of Ind ia 

Uni on Bank of India 

Unsecured Lollns 

Loan from G R lnlraprojects Limited (l'ment Company) 

Total 

Non-C urrent 

C urrent 

13 Trade l'llyllblcs 

l'llr·ticuhu·s 

Totlll outstllnding dues of 

Mic ro ente rpri ses and sma ll enterprises (refer note below) 

Cred itors other than mi cro enterpr ises and sma ll enterpri ses 

Total 

Note 

Details of Dues to M icro, Small & Medium Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006 

Particulnrs 

T he princi pal amount a nd the inte rest due thereon (to be shown separate ly) rema ining unpa id to a ny 

suppli er at the end of each account ing yea r; 

The amount of interest pa1d by the buye r Ill te rms o f scct10n 16 of the rvlicro, Small and l\•1edi um 
En terprises Development Act 2006 (27 of ~006) , a long wi th the amount o f the payment made to the 

supplier beyond the nppoi ntcd day dunng each accou nting ycnr, 

The amou nt of interest due and payable fo r the pen od of delay in maki ng payment (which has been pa id 

but beyond the appo mtcd da y during the year} but without adding the in terest spec ified under the rvli cro. 

Small and Med ium Enterpn scs De\cloprncnt Act. 2006: 

T he amou nt of interest accrued and rcmaming unpaid at the end of each accounting year: and 

The amount of furt her interest remai n1ng due and paya ble even in the succeed ing years, unt il such date 

when the interest dues a bow arc actual ly paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of d1 sa llowancc of a 

deductib le expenditure under section 23 o f the r..~li c ro, Small and Med ium Ente rprises Development Act. 

2006. 

31 March 202 1 3 1 March 2020 

19,808.46 I 0,529.47 
16,286. 14 I 0,440.86 

I 0,441.32 
11 ,7 14.60 I 0,44 1.46 

14,406.98 9,644 .95 
62 ,216. 18 5 1,498.06 

59,041.45 51 ,4 10.70 
3, 174.73 87 .36 

62,216. 18 51.498 06 

31 March 2021 31 March 2020 

3,425.10 9 1.99 
3,425.10 9 1.99 

3 1 March 2021 3 1 ~· l a rch 2020 

The d isclosure in respect of the am ount payable to enterprises whi ch have provided goods and services to the Com pany and whi ch qua lify under 
the definiti on of micro and small enterpri ses. as detlned un der Micro, Sma ll and Medium En terprises Deve lopment Act, 2006 has been made in 
the Financial statement as at 3 1 March 202 1 based on the info rmati on rece ived and ava il able with the Company. On the basis or such 
informat ion, no in terest is payab le to any micro, small and med ium ente rpr ises. Auditors have rel ied upon the information provided by the 

Com pany. 

The Compa ny's e~posure to currency and liqui d ity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 26 

O f the above. trade payables to related parties a re as below: 

Particulars 

Total trade payables to re lated pa rti es 

Total 

14 Other finllncialliabilitics 

l'articulars 

Current Maturities of long-term borrowi ngs 

Employee related liabil ities 

Total 

1:- Oth er cu rren t lia bilities 

l'articulllrs 

Customer advances 

S tatu tor)' liability 

TDS payable 
Total 

Note 

24 

31 Ma rch 202 1 3 I March 2020 

3,37 1.84 75.6 1 
3,371.84 75.6 1 

31 March 2021 3! March 2020 

3, 174.73 87 .36 

0. 77 0.45 
3,175.50 87 .81 

31 :\larch 2021 31 l'vlarch 2020 

74868 

101.87 
101.87 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 

No te s In the fin:wrial s tatemen ts (.::onlinuet!) 

for flu: ) '1.:(11" ~·n,kd 31 Man.:h 202 I 

(Currency lnd1an Rup~:es Ill !akhs) 

12.1 Hurruwin:,:s (coutillu.:d) 

Note: Natun: ufsccunty, intcri!SI rate, repayment terms and other in!Orma\1011 tOr borrowings 

Sr No Pa•·t ir nl:.1rs Tul:tl 

(A) Sl~run·d loans fmm b:mks 

(1) HDFC Bank Lunik·d 19.808.46 

(II) Axis [bnk 16,286.14 

(Iii) Bank uf lmha 

(1v) Union Bm1k 11.714.60 

47 ,809.21) 

Ill) Unscl:ul"cd Juans fl·um 111hcr 
Lo:m hllm G R Jnii"aproje~ts Limi ted t-t, .. w6 .~n~ 

(Pan;nt Company) 

14.406.98 

62,216.18 

31 M:trd1 2021 

Nun-Current 

18,430.32 

15,251.15 

10.%3.00 

44,634.47 

14.406.98 

14,406.98 

59,041.45 

Cu1Tcnt 

1.3i8.14 

1,034.99 

761.60 

3,174.73 

3,174. 73 

Total 

3 I March 2020 

No n-Clll'fent Current Scrurity Repayment tenus 

J U.529.47 10.4·42. 11 87 36 Fir~! charges by w,1y of hypothec,1tion of a!! the fixed <'~~et·s I Movclhle dssets Ri!payment 27 half-y~;arly insta!Jm~::nt t.:ommt:nce post 
projecb hook debt s,operating cash flow , rel'ei v,lb le, rc\'enue wh.1tewr nc1tur~·, completion of moratonum period post COD rangmg from 2% 

I 0,440 .86 10,440.86 

10,441 32 10,441.32 

I 0,441.46 I 0.441.46 

41 .853 . I I 41.765.75 87 36 

9,644.95 9,644.9) 

9.644.95 9.644 .9 :i 

51 ,498.06 51.410 70 87 36 

uncc1lled cc~pital, Prujet:ts bclnk ao.:ount clnd As:;ignment of dll the GR Phagl'\'i.lr<l to 8% o f loan taken . alon g with monthly inkn:st rate 7 60% 
Expressw,,y Limited's right, insur,lnce polic1es ,md inter~st under c1!1 the p.a 
<1grecment relcl \t'd to the projects clnd gucUclnt'ee Or perfornhlOCe hand provided 
by ,,ny pdrty fo r cmy contrcKt relc1ted to the projects in f,wor of the borrower, 

pledge of 51 % shc\ re of equity shM~ 

Fu~t ch.ug~~~ hy wa~· of hyputhP.Cdtiun uf all tlw f1xed a~sels fl\1uv,,b[e ,,s:;t:ls Repayment '27 h<llf·yl~iHly lllStilllment commence pllSL 
project:. hook debts,op(~rdtlllg co~sh f!uw , rt!C"civ,lbll~, re\'enliC wh<llc\·er n,lture, cumpletwn of !n(H<ltorium period po:.t COO r,1nging from '2 % 
uncc1lleJ capllul, Prowct:. h.mk dCCount and A~~ignment of all the GR Phdgwara tu t:l % of loan taken, c1long w ith monthly intere!lt rate 7.60~ 
E:-..pn:! ~S~\·,,y Limited':. nght, insu rance p\Jiicit:'~ ,md interest under <1ll the p.d 

c1greP nwnt related to the projeds and gu.uantt.-e o r performance hand pro\'ided 

by any party fo r an~ · (ontract relil tt~d to the projt>cts in favor of the harrower, 

pled.r,t> of 51% sh<He of t>Q uitv 

F~rst chcHges by way of hypothe(c\tion of ,111 thP fixed o~:.sets / ,\tova hle ilssets Repayment 27 hc1lf-yearly mstallment co mmence post 

proJeCts book debts,operu ting cash flow, ret:eiv,lb le, revenue wh,Hever nc1ture, complet1011 of mordtorium period post COO r,lngmg from 2% 
unc,,lled cclpit"clL ProJeCts b<tnk c~ccount ,md Assignment of <~II the GR Ph,,gWMd to S ?~ of lo,m t,l ken , c1long wJth monthly mterest r,11 e 3.25 "{, 

Expressw<ly Limited's right, insu rclnce policies ,,nd interest under e~ll the p.c\ 

e~e reement relc1!ed to the projects e~nd gtiMclntee or perfornMnCe bond provided 
by ,,ny pcl rty for c\11}' contr,Kt relc\ted to the projects in f,wor of the borrower, 
nlo>rln,. ..,( <;1 ~ c;h.•r"' '" ( .,.....,,;hr .;:h.:. r,, 

First chMges by way of hypot·ht.'l:t:ltion of all the fixed ,1sset:; f Movc1ble assets Repayment '27 h,,[f-yearly inste~llment commence post 
projects hook debts,operating cash flow, recei~· ,1b !e , re\'en ue whilte\'er nature, completion of moratorium p!:! riod post COD r.;mging from '2 % 

unc,11led Cclp it<ll, PtOjCCb hclnk dC(QUnt and Assignment of dll the GR Phc1gwar.:l to S% of loan taken, along w1th monthly mteres t rate 7.60% 
Expressw<1y Limited's nght, insll r<lnce polic1cs cmd interest under .;dl the p .• 1 
c1greement rel,lted to the projects ,1nd gu.uc1ntee or perfo rmunct• hand prov1dcd 

by cmy p<~rty for any cont r,Kt relcl\t'd to the projects tn favor of the borrower, 

oled1!e of 51% sh.ue of eouitv shMe 

Unse~ured Rate of Interest : 9.00% lOr the year 2020-21, the same shJIJ 

be dt:termined on a yearly basis as per the cost of funds of tht: 
Parent Company 

Terms and Source of rc p:tymcnl : Repayblc from the cash 
tlows avndable after meeting the senior debt obligation. in line 
with the we~tt:rfa!l mechamsm as per described under the 
Concession Agreement I Common Loan Agrct:ment and 
Esnow Agreement. 



GR Phagwat·a Expressway Limited 
No tes to the financial statements (coutinu ed) 

j(n·the year ended 3/ i\1/an:h 202 I 

(Currency : Indian Rupees in lak hs) 

16 Revenue fr·om opcnttions 

Particular·s 

Re venue from contracts with customers 

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cos/Mise) 

Revenue from contracts with customers (GST C laim) 

Revenue from contracts with customers (Bonus) 

Reve nue from contracts wi th customers (Utility work} 

Finance income 

Total 

17 Other· income 

Par·ticular·s 

Inte rest incom e 

- on mobi lisation advances to parent com pany 

- on de osits with banks 

Tota l 

18 C ivil const nrclion costs 

P:t!"liculars 

Civ il sub -contract charges 

C iv il sub -contract charges (GST claim) 

C iv il sub -contract charges (Bonus) 

Ci v il sub-co ntract charges (Cos/ ~~lisc) 

Civi l sub-contract c harges (O&M) 

Civd sub-contract charges- uti lit y work 

Labour Cess 

T o tal 

I 9 E m pluycl' Ucncfits ex 1cnse 

P<trlicuhu·s 

Salaries, wages and bonus 

Total 

20 Finance costs 

Pa1·t icula r·s 

Interest on Borrowing 

To Bank 

-To others 

Interest on mobili sation advances 

Other Borrowing Cost 

To tal 

21 Other· expenses 

Particular·s 

Insurance expenses 

Payme nt to audito rs (refer note (i} below) 

Legal and professional charges 

lndepe11tlent engineers fees 

An nua l Custody Fcc 

An nual Re view Fee 

Electri ci ty expenses 

Other expenses 

Input Credit Re ve rse 

Tota l 

(i) Payment to auditors 

Particula1·s 

Payme nt to a uditors (exclusive of GST) 

-as auditor 

-Statutory audtl 

- Other serv ices 

-Rei mbursement of c:-.: penses 

Total 

3 1 ~lar·ch 2021 J I March 2020 

6, 159.69 33.878 15 

3 ,340.57 

1, 107 .47 

480.36 

102.85 16 54 

7,658.34 5,974 .39 
17,741.81 40,976.55 

3 1 Mat-ch 2021 3 I March 2020 

127 .47 

222.13 9 .29 
222.13 136 76 

31 ~larch 2021 3 1 March 20 20 

4,934.50 33,339.37 

1, 107.47 

480.36 

3,303.15 

611.11 

101.69 16 .34 

45.56 25 1. 72 
9,476.37 34,714.90 

31 Mar-ch 2021 3 I f'\'1 arch 2020 

5.63 5.40 
5 .63 5.40 

31 Maroch 2021 3 1 i\'larch 2020 

3 ,904.36 3,499. 11 

1,115.69 746 II 

93 .5 1 

27.54 0 .02 
5,047.60 4 ,338.75 

31 March 2021 3 I March 2020 

139.65 6 8.38 

1.10 0 .25 

12.87 18 .85 

I 59 .83 165.67 

0.81 0.75 

7.90 

160.28 19.62 

0.02 0 .02 

99.32 

573 .92 28 144 

31 1\l:nch 2021 3 1 March 2020 

0.30 0 .25 

0.80 

1.10 0 25 



G R Phagwara Expressway Limited 
Notes to the fhnwcinl staleml'IIIS (c:ontinuetl) 

fi )f· the year ended 3 / A-larch 202 1 

(Currency- Indi an Rupees in la kh s} 

22 Tax expense 

A . Income t:1 x (income) I expen se recognised in the S tatement of Profit and Loss 

Pa•·ticulan 

C u.-re nt tax 

Current tax on pro fit fo r the year 

Defe•-rcd tax 

A fll'lhlllahle to-

Origi nat ion and reversa l o f temporary d ifferences (re fer note D) 

Income tax expense reported in statem e nt of profit and Joss 

B. H.econciliation of effec tivl' tax rate 

Particulars 

Profit before tax 

T ax us1ng the Company ' s Sl<lluto ry tax rate 

Effect of 

Impact of tax ordimmce 

Taxati on in respect o f earli er years 

De ferred tax adj ustments relatmg to prev ious year 

Others 

T<lX expense 

C . Recog nised defen-ed tax (assets) and liabilities 

~lovemcnl in temporary differences 

As on 31st Mn.-ch 202 1 

Pa1·ticnblrs 

Difference in carrymg value and tax base in measureme nt o f 

rmancia l instru men t at amo rt ised cost 

Service co ncessio n income 

Unused Tax Losses 

Net d cfened t:tx (assets) / liabilities 

As on 31 st ~la1·ch 2020 

Pnrticula1·s 

Diffe rence in carry ing , ·a lue a nd tax base in measurement of 

financi al instrum ent at amo rtised cost 

Ser\'lcC concess ion 1ncomc 

Unused Tax Losses 

lvtAT credit ent it lem ent 

Net defcn-cd tax (assets) / liabi lities 

D. lh•cognisetJ defcn-ed tax (assets) :tnd liahilit ics 

As on 31st March 2021 

~lo"emcnt in tempontry diffen•nn's 

Pa,·ticulars 

Diffe re nce 111 carrying val ue and tax base in measurement of 

fm ancial instrum ent <I t amort ised cost 

Service Concessio11 lnolme 

Unused Tax Losses 

i\•IAT credit en titl eme nt 

As on 31st M:wch 2020 

1\lovcment in temporary differences 

Pal·ticul <ll'S 

Difference in carryi ng' al ue and Ia;.; base in measurement of 

fmanc1al instrument at amorti sed cost 

Scr\ icc ConcessiOn Income 

Unused Tax Losses 

i\lr\ T credit cn tnlcmcnt 

13al:tnce as at 
I Apt·il 2020 

125 67 

3.299.38 

( 1.822 93 ) 

( 1, 147 5° ) 

454.60 

Balance as at 

AJH·il 2019 

141 62 

1.559 63 

(885 76) 

(837 .77) 

(2 2.28 ) 

31 ~lar-c h 2021 3 I rvl arch 2020 

(309.7 5) 309.75 

1,751.66 4 76.88 

1,441.91 786.63 

31 i\1arch 2 021 3 I M arch 2020 

2,860.42 I, 772.82 

7 19.91 5 16.25 

930.08 

(309. 75) (5 15) 

I 01.67 286.33 

(10 80 ) 

1,441.91 78663 

Net d efe1Ted tax 

Deferred t:n Defencd t:tx ('lSscts) I 
(nssets) liabilities lillbilities 

I 08 6 1 108.61 

3,943 03 3 ,943.03 

(I ,845.38) (I ,845.38) 

(I ,845.38) 4.0S 1.(,4 2,206.26 

Net dderred t:n: 

Defe1Tcd tax DcfctTcd tax (assets) I 
(assets) Ji:tbilitit'S liab ilities 

125 67 125.67 

3.299 38 3,299.38 

( 1.822.93 ) (1 ,822.93) 

( I , 147.52 ) (1 , 147.52) 

(2 ,970.45) J,.us.os 454.60 

Recognised in Jlecogniscd in Bai:Hlcc as at 

profit or loss O C I dm·in g 31 Mat-ch 2021 
durin g the vear th e n•ar 

( 17 06) 108.61 

643 .65 3,943.03 
(2245) (1 ,845.38) 

I , 147 52 

1,751.66 2,206.26 

Recog nised in Recog nised in Halauce as at 

1wofit o1· loss O C I du1·in g 31 1\lHrch 2020 
dul'ing the vem· the vca r 

( 15.95) 125.67 

1,739.75 3.299 .38 

(937 . 17) (1.822 .93) 

(30975 ) (1 , 147.52) 

476.88 454.60 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 
Noh's to the financinl statements (continued) 

fo r the year ended 31 i\1/orch 202 1 

(C urrency: Indian Rupees in lakhs) 

E. MAT cred it 

Particu iHrs 

AY20 18- 19 

AY 20 19-20 

AY 2020-2 1 

Total 

MAT ned it n•cogniscd 

Babncc HS at 
31 Ma rTh 202 1 

i\'1ATuNiit 

avai lab le 

Expiry assessment 

year 

2033-34 

2034-35 

2035-36 

Ba lance HS at 

3 1 Mardt 2020 

MATncdit 

avai lal> le 

74.86 

762.91 

309.75 

1,147.52 

1, 147.52 

Ex pit)' 
assessment year· 

2033-34 

2034-35 

203 5-36 

F. On 20 Septe mber 20 I Q, the Government of lndin had brought in the Taxat ion Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 20 19 to make certat n a me ndments 

in th e In come Tax Act, I \16 1 (·the Ac t ' ) and the Finance {No.2) Act , 20 19. The ord 1nance was promulgated by the Pres1dent of lnd1 a to effect ta.x 

reforms announced by the Government Key amendments are summari zed as follows 

··Ta.x concession fo r domestic compnnies ( .. New Tax Regime" ): A new sec tion li S BAA was introduced w.e.f. Financial Yenr (FY) 20 19-20 

(Assessment Year (A Y) 2020-2 1 to provide an opt ion for concessional tax at the rate of 25_17% (inclusive of surcharge and cess} 111 case o f a 

domestic company " 

The amendment to the Income Tax Act states that the option to adopt the New Tax Regime is to be exerc ised by the person in the prescribed 

manner on or before the due date speci fi ed under sub-sec tion (I) of section 139 for furni shing the returns of income for any previous year 

re levant to the assessment y ear commencing on o r after the I st day of April 2020 and such option once exercised sha ll apply to a ll subsequent 

assessment yea rs 

The Company had created prov1sion for income tax unde r the O ld Tax Regim e at the time of finali zing the fi nancial statements for the yem 

ended 31 March 2020 smce the management o f the company was of the view that thi s option was more benefic ial 

At the time of fm alizmion o f the Tax Audit Report for FY 20 19-20 and filing of the Income tax return for the said year, the company obse rved 

that the tax liabil ity under the Old Tax Regime may be higher as compared to the New Tax Regi me and there fo re , dec ided to f ile the Income Tax 

Return for the finan cml ycm· 2019-20 under the New Tax Regime. 

The e ffect of th is chnnge in nccount ing esti mate has resulted in reversal of Rs. 309 .75 Lakhs of current tax expe nse and reversal of deferred tax 

a sse ts of Rs 930_08 Lakhs (net tax charge of Rs 620.33 Lakhs) for the fman cinl year 20 19-20. This hns been recorded in the year ended 3 1 

March 202 1 

G. Un u sed Tnx Losses 

Particnla1·s 

i\Y 20 19-20 

AY 2020-2 1 

Tot.tl 

Unused Tax Losses n~cogni sed 

BH IHuce as at 

3 1 i\lnrch 2021 

C<1rry Fon\':l rd Exp i1·y assessment 

Losses yea1· 

1,65453 2027-28 

4 ,201.57 2028-29 

I ,476.16 2029-30 

7,332.26 

7,332.26 

Balance as a t 

3 1 i\ lnrch 2020 

C a!T)' Fo1·wnnl Expi1·y 

Losses assessment yea r 

1.65-'.53 2027-28 

4,201.57 2028-29 

2029-30 

5,856.10 

5,856. 10 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
f or /he year ended 31 March 2021 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs) 

23 Disclosure pursuant to Pa ra 6 of lnd AS 11 5 for Service Concess ion A rran gements 

Name of entity Description of th e arrangement Significant terms of th e arrangement 

GR Phagwara The Company is fanned as a specia l purpose Per iod of concession- 2017- 2035 

Expressway vehicle (SPV) to design, bu ild, operate and Re muneration 400/o during construc tion period and 

Lim ited transfe r bas is. ("DBOT Annuity" or " Hybrid balance 60% in ha lf yearly annui ty in I S years as pe r 

Ann ui ty ") the project re lati ng to Fou r Laning of concess ion agreement 

Phagwa ra to Rupnaga r Section from Km 0.000 Inves tment gra nt from concess10n grantor . No 

(Des ign Chain age ) to km 80.820 (Des ign Infrastructure return at the end of concession per iod Yes 

Chainagc ) NH 344A in the State of Panj ab, which 
Investment and renewal o b ligatio ns Nil 

shall be part ly li nancecl by the Concess ionaire who 
Re-pri c ing dates No 

shall recover its in vestment and costs through 
payment to be made by the author ity. in accordance 

Basis upo n whi ch re- pri cing or rc-negoti ntion is determi ned 

NA 
wit h the term s and condition set in concess ion Premium payable to grantor · Nil 

agreement. 

Fina nci a l Asset 

3 1 Ma rch 2021 

55,659.22 

3 1 March 2020 

53,052.96 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

fo r the year ended 31 March 2021 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs) 

24 Related party disclosure 

A. Related parties with whom the company had transactions during the year 

(a) Parent company: 
G R lnfraproj ects Limited 

(b) Key Man age ment Personnel ("KMP"): 
Mr. Vi nod Kumar Agarwal- Director (res igned w.c.r 02 February 202 1) 
Mr. Anand Rat hi - Director (resigned w.e. r 02 February 202 1) 

Mr. Vikas Agarwal - Director and Chief Execut ive Orricer 
Mr. Ku ldeep .Jain- Chief Financial Officer 
Ms. Heena Talesara -Company Secretmy 
Ms. Riya Parakh - Director (w.e.f 30 June 2020) 
Ms. Anu Kalra - Director (res igned w.e.f. 30 June. 2020) 

Mr. Varun Bhasin- Director (w.e. f 02 February 202 1) 

B. Related party transactions with Holding Company and its closing balances 

The terms and conditions oft he transactions with key management personnel and their related parties were no more favourable than 
those available , or those which might reasonably be expected to be avai lab le. in respect of s imilar transactions with non-key 
management personnel related entities on an arm 's length basis. 

The aggregate va lue of the Company's transact ions and outstanding balances relating to key management personnel and entities over 
which they have control or significant inlluence is as follows: 

Nature of tr·ansa ction 

(a) Loan Received 
(i) G R lnfi·aprojects Limited 

(b) Loan Repaid 
(i) G R lnfraproj ects Limited 

(c) Civil construction costs 
(i) G R lrlli-aprojects Limited 

(d) Mobilisation Advances recover 
(i) G R lnfraprojects Limited 

(e) Interest on Mobilisation Advances given 
(i) G R lnfraproj ects Limited 

(I) Interest Paid on unsecured loan 
(i) G R lnfraprojects Limited 

(g) Remuneration 
(i) Heena Talesara 

Particular·s 

(a) Loan payable 
(i) G R lnfraprojects Limited 

(b) Trade payable 
(i) G R lnfraprojects Limited 

(c) I Outstanding Remuneration 
(i) Hcena Talesara 

Transaction va lue 

31 March 2021 3 I March 2020 

3,740.5 I 5,898.99 

10.SO 2,277.32 

8,9S0.4S 34,463. 18 

2,55 1.02 

127.47 

1,115.69 746.1 1 

S.63 540 

Balance outstanding 
receivable/(payable) 

31 Ma rch 2021 31 March 2020 

14,406.98 9,644 .95 

3,371.84 75.6 1 

0.77 0.45 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

for the year ended 31 March 2021 

(Currency: Indian Rupees inlakhs) 

25 Fa ir Va lue Measurements 

A. Accounting classification and fair values 

31 Ma rch 2021 

Pat·ticu lars 

Trade rccc tvab lcs 

Cash and cash eq ui va len ts 

Other financial nssets 

Tot~li Financial :~ sscts 

Borrowings 

Trade payable 

Other financin l liabi liti es 

T otal Financialli<tbilities 

31 March 2020 

(>a,·ticulars 

Cash and cash eq u1 va lents 

Other flmmcial assets 

Total Financial assets 

BoiTO\\ ings 

Trade payable 

Other fmancialliab il iti es 

Tota l Financial liabilities 

Note : 

FVTI'L 

FVTI'L 

FVOCI 

FVTOC I 

Amorti sed cost 

22. 15 

12,302.82 

55,659.22 

67,984. 19 

62,2 16.18 

3,425.10 

0.77 

65,642.05 

Amot1ised cost 

97 .54 

53,054 .19 

53,15 1.73 

5 1,498 .06 

9 1.99 

0.45 

51.590.50 

T otal 

22 .1 5 

12,302.82 

55,659.22 

67,984.19 

62,2 16. 18 

3,425. 10 

0.77 

65,642.05 

Total 

97.54 

53,054 19 

53. 151 73 

51.498.06 

9 1 99 

0.45 

51.590.50 

Fa ir Value 

Level 1- Level 2- Level 3-

Quoted price Significant Sign ificant 

in active observable unobserva b 

m a t·kcts 

Level I ­

Quoted price 

in acti"e 

markets 

inJlUts lc input s 

Fair Value 

Level 2- Lc\'e l 3 -

Significant Significa nt 

obscn'able unobscn'ab 

ill)Hi t S lc inputs 

Total 

i) The carry ing amounts of financial assets and liabilities arc considered to be the same as their fair va lues due to the current and short term 
nature of such balances and no material differences in the va lues. 

B. Measurement of fair values 

Levels I, 2 and 3 

Level I : It includes Investment in equity shares and mutual fund that has a quoted price and which are actively traded on the stock 
exchanges. It is been va lued using the closing price as at the reporting period on the stock exc hanges. 

Level 2 : The fair va lue of financial instrumenls thai are not traded in an ac ti ve market is determined using va luation techniques which 
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as poss ible on entily-spec ific estimates. If all significant inputs required to 
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 

Level 3 : These instruments are valued based on significant unobservab le inputs whereby future cash tlows are discounled using 
appropriale discount rate. 

When measuring the fa ir value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observab le market data as far as poss ible. If the inputs used to 
measure I he fa ir va lue or an assel or a lia bi li ty fall inl o di fTerenl levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair va lue measurement is 
ca tegor ised in ils entirety in the same level of the f~1ir va lue hierarchy as the lowest level inrut I hal is signi ficant to the entire measurement. 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (collfinued) 

jol' the yea/' ended 3 / Mal'ch 202 1 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs) 

26 Financial instn1mcnts .-isk management objectives and policies 

The Company's financial li abilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade and other payables. The Company's financial assets comprise 
mainly or cash and cash equiva lents and other rece ivables. 

(i) Credit ri sk 
Credit ri sk is the ri sk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a 
financial loss. The Comrany is exr osed to credit risk primarily other financial assets including depos its with banks. The Company's 
exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate va lue of transactions is reasonably spread 

The carrying amount or following financial assets represent s the max imum credit exposure: 

Other tina ncial assets 
This comprises mainly of construction asset receivable - Right lo r Annuity receivabl e from NHA I . The management is of the view that 
those construct ion asset are not impared as the customer is government corporation where no credit risk is perceived. Further the 
manangement does not anticipate a significant loss on account of the time value of money. 

(ii) Liquidity ri sk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obliga tions assoc iated with its financial liabilities that 
are settl ed by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as l~1 r as poss ible, 
that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or ri sking damage to the Company' s reputation. The Company invest in liquid mutual funds to meet the immediate 
obligations. 

Exposure to liquidity risl< 
The lo ll owing are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabi lities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and 

3 1 MHrch 2021 Canyin g Cuntntctua l cas h flows 

amount To tal Less than I 1-S ycars More than 5 

yea r rears 
Non-dc ri\'ati vc financial liabilities 

Borrow1ngs 62,216. 18 62,2 16.18 3 ,1 7~ .73 1 7,02~.00 42,01 7.45 

Trndc payablcs 3,425.10 3 ,425. 10 3 ,~25.10 

Other current flllancml liabllities 0.77 0.77 0.77 

Tut:1l 65,642.115 65,642.05 6,600.60 17,024.011 42,017.45 

31 MHrch 21120 Canyin g Contractual cash flows 

amount Tolal Less than J 1-5 years More th an 5 

year years 
Non-d ct·ivativc financiallinbiliti cs 

13orrowings 51 ,498 .06 51 ,498.06 23,220.00 28,278.06 

Trade payables 9 1.99 9 1.99 9 1. 99 

Other current fimmc ial habli ttics 0.45 0.45 0.45 

TotHI 51 ,590.50 5 1,590.50 92A 4 23,22 0.00 28,278.06 

(iii) Market risl( 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rat es and equity prices - will affect the 
Company's income or the value of its holdings of financia l instruments. Market ri sk is attributable to all market ri sk sensitive financial 
instruments inc luding J·oreign currency receivables and paya bles . The Company is exposed to market ri sk primarily related to foreign 
exchange rate risks. Thus. our exposure to market risk is a function of revenue generating and operating acti vities in lo reign currency. The 
objective of market ri sk management is to avoid excess ive exposure in foreign currency revenues and costs. 

a) C urrency •·is l< 
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees ("Rs. "). The Company is not exposed to lore ign currency ris k. 



GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (coutiuued) 

for the year ended 3/ March 2021 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs) 

26 Financial instruments risli management objectives and policies (coutiuued) 
b) !'rice risl' 

i) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair va lue or future cash tlows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates . The Company is exposed to interest rate ri sk resulting fro m nuctuations in interest rates. Company's borrowing includes 

unsecured loan taken loan from the holding company. Summary of financial assets and financial liabilities has been provided below: 

Ex pos ure to interest rate risk 

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest - bearing financ ial instrument as reported to management is as fo ll ows: 

Fixed- rate in st ruments 

Financial assets 

financ inlliabi litics 

Variable-rate instrum cnts 

Financial assets 

Financial liabilities 

lnte•·est rate sensitivity 

3 1 Mard12021 31 r-.~1arch 2020 

12,157.30 

55,659.22 

62,216.18 

3,903 .26 

51 ,498.06 

Profit or loss is sensit ive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a res ult of change in interest rates. The following tabl e 
demonstrates the sens iti vity of noating rate financial instrument s to a reasonably possible change in interest rates. The risk estimates 
provided assume a parallel shift of I 00 basis points interest rate across a ll y ield curves. This calculation also assumes that the change 

occurs at th e balance sheet date and has been ca lculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The year end balances are not 
necessari ly representative of the average debt outstanding during the yea r. 

Sensitivity analysis 
Particu lars 

Interest rate 

- increase by I 00 basis poin ts 

-decrease by I 00 basis points 

27 Capital management 

Impact on pro lit before tax 

3 1 March 202 1 31 ~v1arc h 2020 

-65.57 

65.57 

-475 .95 

475 .95 

The Company's po licy is to maintain strong capital base so as to maintain investor, credito r and market confidence and to susta in ruture 
development of the business. 

The Company manages the capital structure by balanced mi x of debt and equity. T he Company's capital structure is influenced by the 

changes in regulatory fl·amework, government policies, available options of financing and the impact of the same on the liquidity position. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies o r processes for managing capital during the years ended 3 1 March 202 1 and year ended 
3 1 March 2020. 

Particulars 

Total bOITO\vlngs 

Less_ cash and cash eqUJvalents 

Adju sted net debt 

Equity share capital 

Other cquny 

Tntal equity 

Adjus ted net debt to equity ratio 

28 Cont inge nt liabilities and commitments 

Particulars 

a) Ct)lll llli tm eut s 

(i) C'ap1tal Comnntmcnts 

31 ~ larch 2021 

62,216.18 

12,302.82 

49,913.36 

2,030.00 

5,606.83 

7,636.83 

3 1 t-.·1arch 2020 

5 1.498.06 

97 .54 

5 1,400.52 

2,030.00 

4,188.32 

6.2 18.32 

31 ~ larch 2021 31 ~larch 20211 

2, I ?4.42 7. 12892 



GR Phagwat·a Expressway Limited 
Notes to the finan cial statements (c.:ontimwt!) 

fu r the y ear ended 31 i\llarch 202 1 

(C urre ncy : Indi an Rupees in la khs) 

29 E:wnin gs pet· shat·c 

P~u·ticul a rs 

Face value per equ ity share (111 Rs.) 

(a) Profit fo r the year allributabl e to equity shareholders 

(b) Number of equity shares at the beginning o f the year 

(c) Equity shares issued during the year 

(d) Number o f eq uity shares at the end of the yea r 

(e) Weighted average number of equity shares fo r ca lculatmg bas ic EPS 

(f) Vlctghted average number o f equity shares fo r ca lculnt ing d iluted E PS 

Earnings Pe r Share (in Rs. ): 

Note : 

Bnsic earning per share (ale) 

Diluted ea rni ng per share (a/f) 

31 i\larch 202 I 3 \ i\'larch ?020 

10.00 10 00 

1,418.51 981 04 
2 ,03,00,000 2,03 ,00.000 

2,03 ,00,000 1.03.00.000 

2,03,00,000 2.03 ,00.000 

2,03,00,000 1,03.00.000 

6.99 4.83 

6.99 4 .83 

\Ve ighted a verage number of equ ity slwres is the number of eq uity shares out standmg at the beginning o f the year adjusted by the num ber of eq uity slwres issued du nng the 

year m ult1pl icd by the t im e wc1ghting facto r. The time weighting facto r is the number of days for which the spec ific slw rcs arc outstandi ng as a pro porti on of totalnumbe1 

of days duri ng the year. 

30 Segm ent repot·tin g 

Basis for segmentntion 

In acco rdance w ith the requ irements o f Inti AS I 08 - "Segment Reporting", the Company is primarily engaged in a business o f civil construction and has no other primary 

report able segments. The rvlanaging Director of the Co mpcmy a llocate the reso urces and assess the performance o f the Compa ny. thus he is the C hief Operating Dec1S10 n 

~~fak er (COD M). The CO DM moni tors the operating resu lt s of t he business ns a s ing le segment , hence no separate segment needs to be di sclosed 

lnfonnation <lhout geog n tphical :tt"t'as 
As the Compa ny operates in India onl y, hence no separate geogrnph ical segment is di sclosed. 

lnfonnation aboutmajoJ· customers 

Revenue of Rs. l 7741 .8 1 lakhs are deri ved from single custom er (N HAI ) whi t.:h a111ounts to I 0% or m ore of the Company ' s revenue. 

31 The SARS CoV <~ virus responsible for CO VID- 19 contin ues to spread across the g lobe a nd lndw. In order to contai n the spread of COVID- 19, the Central Governm ent of 

India and var ious Stnte Go\·crnments imposed a compl ete lockdown including curbs on internati onal and domesti c travel 

The Co mpany (the ·'Concessionaire" ) is fo rmed as a Specia l Purpose Veh icle to design, build , operate and transfer (the " DBOT annuit y" or ·' J-I ybnd Hnnui ty" ) the prOJCCt 

re lat ing to Four Laning of Phagwara to Rup nagar Sect ion fom Km 0.000 (Design C ha inage ) to km 80.87 0 (Design C ha inage ) N I-l 344A in the Stnte of Punj ab (the 

·' Project" ). wh1ch sha ll be partly fmanccd by the Concess lOIUllre who shall recover it s in vestment and costs through ann uity pay ments and OperatiOn & i'vlai nt ennncc (08: M l 
Pay m ent to be m ade by N<1 ti ona l 1-l ighwHys Authori ty o r lncha (the -·_.\mhonty '' ). in accordance w 1th the terms and condi ti ons set forth in th1 s CnncessJon Agreemen t 

entered into w Jth the Authonty The Company 1s excc ut111 g the Proj ect through an E PC agreement w ith G R lnfrap roJcc ts Limited (the '·Contractor'" or '" 1-lo lJ ulg Co111pany'· J 
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estimates and ass umpt1ons and based on the current estima tes. the Company expects to recover the cm ry mg amount o f trade recei vables including unb li led receivab les. 
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GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 
Notes to the financial statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2021 

1. Reporting entity 

GR Phagwara Expressway Limited (the ' Company ' ) having Registered office at GR House, 
Hi ran Magri , Sector 11 , Udaipur Udaipur RJ 313002 IN was incorporated in Udaipur Rajasthan, 
lndia on September 2 1, 2016 as a public limited Company under the Companies Act, 201 3 (the 
' Act') as ' GR Phagwara Expressway Limited' .. 

The Company is formed as a special purpose vehicle (SPY) to design , build, operate and transfer 
and maintain, (the "DBOT") the proj ect re lating to Four Laning of Phagwara to Rupnagar Section 
from Km 0 .000 (Desi gn Chainage) to km 80.820 (Design Chainage ) NH 344A in the State of 

Punjab, which shall be pa1ily financed by the Concessionaire who shall recover its investment and 
costs through annuity paym ents and Operation &Maintenance (O&M) Payment to be made by 
the Authority, in accordance with the term s and conditions set forth in this Concession Agreement 

entered into . 

2. Basis of preparation 

a. Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting 
Standards (Jnd AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules , 2015 notified 

under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 , (the 'Act ' ) and other relevant provisions of the 
Act (as amended from time to time). 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company' s Board of Directors on 

dated 26111 May, 2021 

Detail s of the Company ' s accounting policies are included in Note 3. 

b. Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.Lakhs), which is also the 

Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, 

unless otherwise indicated. 

c. Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost using accrual basis of 

accounting except certain financial instruments measured at fair values. 

d. Use a,{' estimates amljudgments 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and 
assumpt ions that affect the application of accounting polic ies and the rep01ted amounts of 

assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlyin g assumptions are revi ewed on an ongomg basis. Revi sions to 
accountin g estimates are recognised prospectively. 
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Notes to the financial statements(continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2021 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
Information about assumptions and estimation uncetiallltt es that have a significant risk of 
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following 

notes: 

Recognition of Current I Deferred tax expense 
Revenue recognition under service concession arrangement 
Provision for doubtful debts 

e. Measurement of fair values 

Some of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair 

values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities . 

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurem ent of fair 

values. This includes a financial reporting team that has overall responsibility for overseeing 
all significant fair value measurements , including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to 

the chief financial officer. 

The financial rep01ting team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation 

adjustments. If third party information, such as pricing services, is used to measure fair values , 
then the financial reporting team assesses the ev idence obtained from the third parties to 

support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the 

level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. 

Fair values are categorised into different leve ls in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs 
used in the valuation techniques as follows. 

Levell: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i .e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 

(unobservable inputs). 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market 

data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall 

into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised 

in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is 

significant to the entire measurem ent. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the 

reporting period during which the change has occurred. 

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the 

following notes: 

Financial instruments 
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Notes to the financial statements(continued) 
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3. Significant accounting polices 

a. Foreign currency transaction 

Transactions in forei gn currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of 
the Company at the exchange rates at the date of the transaction or at an average rate if the 
average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the 
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional 
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined . Non-monetary assets and 
liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in profit or 

loss. 

b. Financial instruments 

i Recognition and initial measurement 
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are 
originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when 
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item 
not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly 

attributable to its acquisition or issue. 

u Classification and subsequent measurement 

Financial assets 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at 

amortised cost; 
FVOCI - debt investment; 
FVOCI - equity investment; or 
FVTPL 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in 
the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

A financial asset is measured at amotiised cost if it meets both of the following conditions 

and is not designated as at FVTPL: 
the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect 

contractual cash flows; and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding. 

A debt investment is measured at FVOCl if it meets both of the followin g conditions and 

is not designated as at FVTPL: 
the asset is held within a business model vvhose obj ective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets ; and 
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Notes to the financial statements(continued) 
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the contractual term s of the financial asset g ive ri se on spec ifi ed dates to cash flows 
that are sole ly payments of principal and interest on the princ ipal amount 
outstanding. 

At present, the Company does not have investments in any debt securities c lass ified as 
FVOCI. 

On ini t ia l recogniti on of an equity investment that is not he ld for trading, the Company 
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCT 
(designated as FVOCl -equity investment). This e lect ion is made on an investment by 
investment basis. 

All fin anc ial assets not c lass ifi ed as measured at amorti sed cost or FVOC I as described 

above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initi al 
recognition, the Company may irrevocably des ignate a financi al asset that otherwise 
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if 

doing so e liminates or s ignificantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise 
anse. 

Financial assets: Business model assessment 

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the busi ness mode l in which a 
financial asset is he ld at a portfolio level because thi s best reflects the way the business is 
managed and informat ion is provided to management. The information considered 
inc ludes: 

the stated polici es and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those 
po licies in pract ice . These include whether management 's strategy focuses on 
earning contractual interest income, mainta ining a particular interest rate profile, 
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related 
liab iliti es or expected cash outflows or rea li s ing cash flows through the sale of the 

assets; 
how the performance of the portfolio is eva luated and reported to the Company's 
management; 
the ri sks that affect the performance of the business mode l (and the finan cial assets 
held within that business mode l) and how those risks are managed; 
how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is 

based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows 
co llected; and 

the frequency, volume and t iming of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the 
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sa les activity. 

Transfers of financial assets to third pat1ies in transactions that do not qualify for 
derecogniti on are not considered sa les for this purpose, consistent w ith the Company's 
continuing recognition ofthe assets . 

Financ ia l assets that are he ld fo r trad ing or are managed and whose performance ts 
eval uated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL. 
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Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of 
principal and interest 

For the purposes ofthi s assessment, ' princ ipa l' is defi ned as the fair va lue of the financial 

asset on initial recognition. ' Interest' is defined as considerat ion for the time va lue of 
money and for the credit ri sk associated with the princ ipa l amount outstanding during a 

particular period of time and for other basic lending ri sks and costs (e .g. liquidity ri sk and 

administrative costs),as well as a profit marg in. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are sole ly payments of principal and 

interest, the Company cons iders the contractua l terms of the instrument. T hi s inc ludes 

assessing whether the fi nancial asset contains a contractual term that co uld change the 
timing o r amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In 

mak ing thi s assessment, the Company cons iders: 

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows ; 

term s that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, inc luding variable interest rate 

features ; 

prepayment and extens ion features ; and 

terms that limit the Company's c la im to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. 

non-recourse features). 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the so lely payments of principal and interest 
cr iterion if the prepayment amount substanti a lly represents unpa id amounts of principal 

and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional 

compensation for early termination of the contract. Addi t ionally, for a financial asset 
acquired at a significant di sco unt or premium to its contractua l paramount, a feature that 

permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substant ially represents the contractual 

par amount plus acc rued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may a lso include 

reasonab le additional compensation for early termination) is treated as cons istent with this 
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is in signifi cant at initial recognition. 

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financi al assets at FVT PL These assets are subsequently measured at fa ir value. Net 
ga ins and losses, including any interest or dividend 
incom e, are recogni sed in profit or loss. 

F inanc ia l assets 
amortised cost 

Equity 
FVOCI 

investments 

at T hese assets are subseq uently measured at amortised cost 
us ing the effective interest method. The amortised cost is 
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign 
exchange gai ns and losses and impairment are recognised 
in profit or loss. Any ga in o r loss on derecognition is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 
Dividends are recogni sed as income in profit or loss unless 
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the 
cost of the investment. O th er- net gai ns and losses are 
recognised in OCI and are not rec lass ified to profit o r loss. 

Financia l liabi lities are classified as measured at amort ised cost or FVTPL. A financial 

li ab ili ty is c lassified as at FVTPL if it is c lass ified as he ld-for- trad ing, or it is a deri vat ive 

or it is designated as such on initial recogniti on. Financia l liabilities at FVTPL are 

measured at fair value and net ga ins and losses, including any interest expense, ar S 

recogni sed in profit or loss. Other financial li abi li ties are subsequently measured 
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amortised cost using the effective interest method . Interest expense and foreign exchange 
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also 
recogni sed in profit or loss. 

Fees paid on the establi shment of loan facilities are recognised as transact ion costs of loan 

to the extent it is probable that some or all of the loan facility will be drawn down . The 
facility fee and re lated payments are accounted for as a transaction cost under Ind AS I 09. 
The said facility fee is deferred and treated as a transaction cost when draw-down occurs; 
it is not amortised prior to the draw-down. 

iii. Derecognition 

Financial assets 
The Company derecognises a finan cia l asset when the contractual rights to the cash fl ows 
from the financ ial asset expire, o r it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash 
flows in a transaction in which substantia lly a ll of the ri sks and rewards of ownership of 

the financ ial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains 
substantia lly all of the ri sks and rewards of ownership and does not reta in contro l of the 
financial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it tran sfers assets recognised on its 
balance sheet, but reta ins either a ll or substantia lly all of the ri sks and rewards of the 
transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecogn ised. 

Financial liabilities 
The Company derecogni ses a financial liability when its contractual ob li gation s are 
di scharged or cancell ed or expire. 

The Company a lso derecognises a fi nanc ial liability when its terms are modified and the 
cash flows under the modified term s are substantially different. In this case, a new 
financial liability based on the modified terms is recogni sed at fair value. The difference 
betvveen the carry ing amount of the financial li ability extin gui shed and the new financi al 
liability with modified terms is recogni sed in profit or loss . 

1v. Offsetting 
Financial assets and financial liab ilities are offset and the net amount presented in the 
balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a lega lly enfo rceable right 
to set off the amounts and it intends e ither to settle them on a net basis or to real ise the 
asset and settle the liability si multaneo usly . 

c. Operating cycle 

All assets and li ab iliti es have been c la ss ifi ed as current or non-current as per the Company ' s 
norma l operati ng cyc le and other criteria set out in the Schedu le III of the Companies Act, 

201 3. Operating cycle is the time from start of the project to the ir realization in cash or cash 
equiva lents. 

d. Property, plant and equipment 

1. Recognition and measuremeut 
Items of property, pl ant and equipm ent are meas ured at cost, w hi ch in cludes capita li sed 
borrowin g costs , less accumulated depreciation and acc umul ated 

any. 
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Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including 
impott duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and 
rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its 
intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the 
site on which it is located. 

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of 
materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to 
working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing 
the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, 

then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and 
equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in 
profit or loss. 

ii. Subsequent expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economtc 
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

iii. Derecognition 
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The 
consequential gain or loss is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

e. Intangible assets 

i. Recognition and measurement 
Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. 
Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and any accumulated impairment losses. 

ii. Subsequent expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates . All other expenditure is recognised in 

profit or loss as incurred. 

iii. Derecognition 
The carrying amount of an intang ible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the 
Derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and is recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognisecl . 

f. Inventories 
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written down below cost if the fini shed products in which they will be incorporated are 
expected to be sold at or above cost. The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out 
("FIFO") formula, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production 
or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and 
condition . 

In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes direct materia ls 
and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity 
and exc ise duty. Cost is determined on FIFO basis. Trading goods are va lued at lower of cost 
and net rea lizable value. Cost is determined on FIFO basis. 

g. Impairment 

Impairment ojfinancial instruments 

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on: 
financial assets measured at amortised cost; and 
financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised 
cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired ' when one or more events 
that have a detrim ental impact on the est im ated future cash fi ows of the financial asset 
have occurred. 

Ev idence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data: 
s ignifi cant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 
a breach of contract such as a default or being past due fo r 90 days or more; 
the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company 
would not consider othen-vise; 
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial 
reorgani sat ion ; or 
the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

The Company measures loss a llowances at an amount equa l to lifetim e expected credit 
losses, except for bank balances for whi ch credit ri sk (i.e. the risk of default occurring 
over the expected life of the financia l in stru ment) has not increased significantly since 
initial recognition, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses. 

Loss allowances for trade rece ivables are a lways measured at an amount equal to lifetim e 
expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that 
result fro m all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 
Twe lve months expected cred it losses are the portion of expected cred it losses that result 
from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a sh01ier 
period if the expected I ife of the instrum ent is less than 12 months). 
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analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment 
and including forward looking information. 

Measurement of expected credit losses 
Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses . Credit losses 
are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i .e . the difference between the 
cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the 
Company expects to receive). 

Presentation of allowance fo1· expected credit losses in the balance sheet. 
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the 
gross carrying amount of the assets. 

ii Impairment l~lnon-:financial assets 

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped 
together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of 
assets that generates cash inflows that are large ly independent of the cash inflows of other 
assets or CGUs. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the hi gher of its value in use 
and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the est imated future cash 
flows , discounted to their present value usin g a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the 
asset). 

The Company' s corporate assets (e.g. , central office building for providing support to 
various CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a 
corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate 
asset belongs. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss . Impairm ent loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the 
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying 
amounts of the other assets ofthe CGU (or group ofCGUs) on a pro rata basis. 

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, 
the Company reviews at each reporting date \Vhether there is any indication that the loss 
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made 
only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined , net of depreciation or amortisation , if no impairment 
loss had been recognised . 
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h. Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undi scounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected 
to be paid e.g. Under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee, and the amount of obligation can be est imated reliably. 

1. Provisions and contingencies (other than for employee benefits) 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated re liably, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits wi II be required to sett le the obligation. Provisions are determined by 
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the I iabil ity. 

The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses 
are not provided for. 

Contingencies 
Disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefi ts or the amount of such obi igation cannot be measured reliably. When there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which like lihood of outflow of 
resources em body ing economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

j. Revenue (rom contracts with customer 

Service Concession Arrangement 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services 
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company 
assesses promises in the contract that are separate performance obi igations to which a portion 
of transaction price is allocated. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction pnce as specified in the contract with the 
customer. It excludes taxes or other amounts collected from customers in its capacity as an 
agent. 

The Company constructs the infrastructure (road) used to provide a public service and 
operates and maintains that infrastructure for a specified period of time. Under Appendi x D to 
lnd AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with C ustomers, this arrangement is accounted for 
based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset is used to the extent that the 
Company receives a ri ght to charge the users of the public service. The financial asset is used 
when the Company has an unconditional ri ght to receive cash or another financial asset from 
or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services. 

Design-Build-Operate-Transfer (DBOT) contracts on hybr id annuity basis contain three 
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construction phase of DBOT, O&M income is recognised in the operating phase of the 
DBOT, while finance income is recognised over a concession period based on the imputed 

interest method. 

Revenue related to construction services provided under a service concession arrangement is 

recognised based on the stage of completion of the work performed. The stage of completion 
is assessed by reference to input method i.e . costs incurred till the date in proportion to total 
estimated cost to complete the work. 

Revenue from operation and maintenance activities are recognised at an amount for which it 
has right to consideration (i.e. right to invoice) from customer that corresponds directly with 
the value ofthe performance completed to the date. 

Contract balances 
Contract assets 
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to 
the customer e.g. unbilled revenue. If the Company performs by transferring goods or 
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a 
contract asset i.e. unbilled revenue is recognised for the earned consideration that is 
conditional. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become 
unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company issues an invoice to the Customer. 

Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company ' s right to an amount of consideration that is 
unconditional i.e . only the passage oftime is required before payment of consideration is due. 

Contract liabilities 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the 
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the 
customer. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under 
the contract. 

Others 
Interest income is recognised using effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

k. Leases 

ii 

Assets held under lease 
Leases of property, plant and equipment that transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. All the other leases are classified as 
operating leases. For finance leased, the leased assets are measured initially at an amount 
equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. Subsequent to initial recognition , the assets are accounted for in accordance 
vvith the accountin g policy applicabl e to similar owned assets . 

Assets held under operating leases are neither recognised in (in case the Company is 
lessee) nor derecognized (in case the Company is lessor) from the Company ' s Balance 

Sheet. 
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inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives received are recogni sed as an integral part of 
the total lease expense over the term of th e lease. 

iii Assets given on lease 
In respect of assets provided on finance leases, amounts due from lessees are recorded as 
receivables at the amount of the Company ' s net investment in the leases. Fi nance lease 
in come is allocated to accountin g periods so as to refl ect a constant per iodi c rate of return 
on the Company ' s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. In respect of assets 
g iven on operating lease, lease renta ls are accounted on accrual basis in accordance with 
the respective lease agreements. 

I. Recognition of interest income or expense 

Interest income or expense is recognised us ing the effect ive interest method. 

T he ' effective interest rate ' is the rate that exact ly di scounts estimated future cash payments or 
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrum ent to : 

the gross carrying amount of the fin ancial asset; or 
the amortised cost of the financi a l I iab i I ity . 

m. Income tax 

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss except to the extent that it re lates to an item recogni sed directly in equity or in other 

comprehensive income. 

Current tax 
Current tax comprises of the expected tax payabl e or receivable on the taxabl e income or 

loss for the year and any adju stm ent to the tax payable or rece ivabl e in respect of previous 
years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to 
be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, re lated to income taxes. It is 
measured us ing tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting 

date. 

Current tax assets and current tax I iabi I ities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable 
right to set off the recogni sed amounts, and it is intend ed to realise the asset and sett le the 
liability on a net bas is or simultaneously. 

ii Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recogni sed in respect of temporary differences between the carry ing 
amounts of assets and liabiliti es for fi nanc ia l report ing purposes and the corresponding 

amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is a lso recognised in respect of carried 
fo rward tax losses and tax credits. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be ava il ab le aga in st which they ca n be used . The existence of unused tax 
losses is strong ev idence that fut ure taxabl e profit may not be available. Therefore, in case 
of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the 
extent that it has suffic ient taxabl e tempora ry differences or there is convinc ing other 
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evidence that suffic ient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax 
asset can be realised. 

Deferred tax assets - unrecogni sed or recogni sed, are rev iewed at each reporting date and 
are recogni sed/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respective ly 
th at the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to app ly to the period when the 
asset is realised or the liability is sett led, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substant ive ly enacted by the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax refl ects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or sett le the 
carry ing amount of its assets and li ab ilit ies. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a lega lly enforceable right to offset 
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes lev ied by the same tax 
authority on the same taxable entity, or on di ffe rent tax entities, but they intend to sett le 
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be 
reali sed s imultaneously . 

Any tax credit ava ilable is recognised as deferred tax to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profit will be available aga inst which the unused tax credit can be utili zed. 
The sa id asset is created by way of credit to the statement of Profit and loss and shown 
under the head of deferred tax. 

Presentation of current and deferred ta.x:: 
Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, except when they re late to items that are recogni zed in Other Comprehensive 
Income, in which case, the current and deferred tax income/expense are recognized in 
Other Comprehensive Income. 

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilit ies, where it has a legally 
enforceab le right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on 
a net bas is, or to realize the asset and sett le the liability s imultaneously. In case of deferred 
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a lega lly 
enforceab le right to set off corresponding current tax assets aga inst current tax liabili t ies 
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities re late to income taxes lev ied by the 
same tax authority on the Company. 

n. Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs are inte rest and other incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds . 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acqu is ition or construct ion of an asset which 
necessar ily take a substantial period of time to get ready for the ir intended use are capita li sed 
as pa1t of the cost of that asset. Other borrovving costs are recogni sed as an expense in the 
period in whi ch they are incurred . 
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o. Operating segments 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal report ing provided to 
the Chief Operati ng Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company . The CO DM is responsible for 
a llocat ing resources and assess ing performance of the operating segments of the Company. 

p. Cm;/z am/ cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Statement of cash fiows com prise cash and 
cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits w ith banks w here the ori gi na l maturity is 
three month s or less and other short term hi ghly liquid investments. 

In line with the amendments to lnd AS 7 Statement of Cash fiows (effective from April 1, 
20 17), the Company has provided disclosures that enable users of financial statements to 
eva luate changes in li ab ilities arising from financing activities, inc luding both changes arising 
from cash fi ows and non-cash changes. The adoption of am endm ent did not have any material 
impact on the financial statements. 

q. Earnings per Share 

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net profit after taxes for th e yea r by we ighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus share 
e lements in eq uity shares issued during the year and excluding treasure shares, if any. 

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per 
share to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs 
assoc iated with dilutive potential equity shares and the weighted average number of additional 
equ ity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all diluti ve 
potential equity shares. 

r. Dividends 

The Company recognises a liability for dividends to eq uity ho lders of the Company when the 
dividend is authori zed and the dividend is no longer at the discret ion of the Company. As per 
the corporate laws in India, a dividend is authori sed when it is approved by the shareho lders. 
A corresponding amount is recogni sed directly in equity. 

s. Event Occuning after Reporting Date 

Adj usting events (that provides evidence of condi tion that existed at the ba lance sheet date) 
occurring after the balance sheet date are recognized in the financial statements. Material non 

adjusting events (that are inductive of conditions that arose subsequent to the ba lance sheet 
date) occurring after the ba lance sheet date that represents material change and commitment 
affect ing the financial position are disclosed in the Directors ' Report. 


